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MR.

MR- SHTELDS: There ar:e a few matt.ers, my Lord. Firstly, thetranscript prepared of the hearing last Monday - has yourLordship been sent a copy of that?

reached me.

night, so if I could

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. (Same handed).

MR. SHTELDS: As your Lordship will recalrr |ou ordered me tolodge a skeleton argument of my opening speech.

MR. ,rusrrcE MORLAND: yes, r am grateful for that, and. r have readir..

MR- SHIELDS: I am obliged. There are one or two alterat.ions tothat but nothing which I would regard as of significance whichI need to draw your Lordship,s attention.
secondly, yo-ur Lordship will recaIl that we alsoprepared a chr,onology which we lodged with you.

MR. ,]USTICE MORTAND: Yes.

MR. sHrELDs: Havj-ng seen my client and gone through somedisclosed documenLs, it appears that r have acLually got oneor two dates wrong. They are minor dates but r thi;k-perhapsyour Lordship should have a comect one.

MR. ,rusrrcE MORLAND: yes. There will be copies for the jury ofthe correct one?

MR. SHTELDS: Yes. rf your Lordship wants them to be handed tothe jyry, there wj-1l be copies. r had the trip from Budapest.to Belgrade being made two days before it was made. (sam-e
handed). r do not think it is in any sense prejudicial to
anyone that I got that wrongi.

Thirdly, r thought it wourd be worth clarifying whatdirections_ you ygfe going to make in terms of jury SerEction.Your Lordship will remember we had discussion on Lnat.
MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Yes.

l,IR. SHTELDS: you will find 1! 1t p.2 of the transcript. r canrecall but r cannot. now find it, and r apologis" ?o, that,that we had a subsequent discussion betwlen is "" to whether
we could refine the criteria for exclusion.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: I know there was some mention that it shouldnot be confined soIeIy to t,he names in the list and thevarious organisations but should also include close relationsor friends.

JUSTICB MORLAND: It. certainly has not

SHIELDS: It only arrived late Friday
hand up a fuI1 transcript of that.

BEIIBRLET F TI'NNBRY A C!
OFFICI.AI SEORTEAITD YTRITBRS



1 MR. SHIELDS: Your Lordship will find at p,2 the prowisional
2 directions, para.C.
3
4 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. (after a pause): Dealing with A, any
5 commenLs on that? Exclude anyone who has ever been employed
6 or worked for ITN Channel 3 or Channel 4 or who has a close
7 relation or friend. B, ?Dy comment about that, Mr. Shields?
B

9 MR. SHIELDS: No, 0y Lord.
10
1l- MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: C? No. Now, D, do we want it more
1,2 extensive than that? f have no objection to reading out the
13 names of what are described as the key protagonist.s.
1_4

15 MR. SHIELDS: I am very happy for your Lordship to do that.
15
17 MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. You would prefer that?
18
19 MR. MILLAR: Pl-ease .

20
.,,' 27- MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes, certainly. r will not mention the

22 names of the transla-Iors, Misha, Mira and Nina because that
23 would be meaningless- rea11y. But other t.han that I will read
24 all those names out. Anything else?
25
26 MR. SHIELDS: No, that. is essentially it, if your Lordship is
27 happy with the order in which I intend to take it. So I am
28 going to show the Channel 4 rushes first the Channel 3
29 rushes first. If your Lordship is interested, I do have a
30 timing of all those, how long it is going to t.ake, and I think
31 it works out, after I have shown the rushes, Channel 4,
32 Channel 3, subsequently the broadcast on Augr:st 5th, I intend
33 t.o show the whole broadcast, because other parts of the
34 programme dealt with t.his so it is only right that the jury
35 see the context.
35
37 MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: CerLainly.
38

,", i39 MR. SHIELDS: And Augnrst 7th. I think they come to about three''' 40 hours. So looking at in the round, subject to your Lordship.
4l having any break t,oday, I envJ-sage I will take today hopefully
42 and then Ian Williams will start first thing tomorrow.
43 f would propose, if I finished at four o'cIock, that he does
44 not start until tomorrow.
45
46 MR. .fUSTICE MORLAND: Certainly.
47
48 MR. SHIELDS: That would be more sensible for everyone.
49
50 MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. Thank you.
5l-
52 MR. SHIELDS: My learned friend Mr. Barca helpfully says should we
53 also probably exclude people with Yugoslavian origin. That
54 may be the one that we did take up last time.
55

BEVERI,E:T' NI,NNBRI & CO
oPFrcrAt sEoRrEAl{D wRrrERs 

2



1 MR. iIUSTICE MORLAND: What do you say about that, Mr. Mi11ar?
z
3 IvlR. MILLAR: I think Mr. Barca's recollection is correct. It. came
4 up later on in the directions hearing. The thinking, I think,
5 was that there would be such a risk that anybody from
5 Yugoslavia would have some empat.hy with one side or another in
7 t.he conflict that they should be
B

9 MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: We1I, do you want me to say anyone who was
10 born in Yugoslavia or whose parents were born in Yugoslavia?
11
12 MR. MII-.,LAR; Yes
13
1,4 MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Would that satisfactory bot.h of you? Yes.
15
15 MR. SHIELDS: One last maLter, a sma11 matter, which is this: on
L7 looking at Mr. Williams' st.at,ement and going through it with
18 him, it appeared that. a tlpographical error had occurred in
19 that, ds your Lordship reca1ls, Bt the end of his witness

.,, 20 statement he goes through the article as numbered.
'2t

22 MR. .]USTICE MORLAND: Yes.
23
24 MR. SHIELDS: As it happened, we have obviously numbered the
25 article and picked out numbers of paragraphs. When it came to
25 be t.1ped up, someone then just tlped the paragraphs
27 seguentially, L, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7, B, 9, 10. So we have
28 act.ua11y corrected that. I have told my learned friend.
29 I will hand your Lordship a copy of the corrected version.
30
31 MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Thank you very much. (Same handed).
32
33 MR. SHIELDS: It j-s a small matter but it just happened that way.
34 That is all I have Lo say to your Lordship.
35
35 MR. .fUSTICE MORLAND: Thank you.
37
38 MR. SHIELDS: There is one matLer that I want to mention at the

', i 39 end of proceedings today in accordance with your direction.
40
4L MR. .IUSTICE MORLAND: At the end of today?
42
43 MR. SHIELDS: Yes.
44
45 MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: That i's when the jury have gone home?
46
47 MR. SHIELDS: When the jury have gone home.
48
49 10 .45 a.rn.
50
5l- MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. WeIl, I apologise to people at the
52 back of the court. They will temporarily have to leave court
53 while 30 potential jurors come into court. Nobody wil},
54 I hope, steal your places, but if you would not mind leaving
55 court. I think we need the two back rows, if you could be
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good enough to leave temporarily. (After a pause): Ladies
and gentlemen, 12 of you are going to be selected. at random totry a rlber case. rt is a case that concerns the conflict inBosnia in L992 and certain television news broadcast.s inAugust 1-992 and certain articles written about the news
broadcast.s a number of years later in 1997. rt is of course
import.ant. that nobody trying the case has any personal
involvement wj-th either any of the peopre coneerned in thecase or the problems that arose in Bosnia in 1"992.

Now, I am first of all going to ask you if any of youby any chance have ever worked for or been employed by rrNl
channer 3 or channel 4, or who have close relitions oi friendsthat have worked for or been employed by rrN, channel 3 orchannel 4. rf there is any such person courd they be good.
enough to put their hands up. Thank you.

Now, by any chance have any of you been ei-ther born orhave your parents been born in what was called yugoslavia?
No.

IIave any of you visited yugoslavia in the past 1_Oyears? Would you mind giving your name to the jr.y usher?
That. includes anybody who has served in the Forces-or in anyrelief organisation of course in yugoslavia or has any croslrelation or friend who has done so.

The next question is, have any of you ever worked foror written for or been employed by a company called rnforminc,
LM Magazine or a magazine calIed Living ttariism, or have anyof you worked for or worked with either Mr. Michael Hume whois a journalist and editor, or Miss Helene Guldberg, who is apublisher? No. Thank you.

Now r am going to read out slowry the names of some of
t.he like1y principal witnesses in the case and if any of you
think you have met any of these people or have close friei:ds
and relations who worked for or are acquainted with thesepeople, would you put your hands up? The first name isMr. stuart Purvis who was the editor in chief of rrN. Then
various people who worked for channel 4: Mr. ran wilriams, areporter. Mr, chris Heys, a sound recordist. Mr. JamesNicholas, a cameraman video tape editor. Mr. Andrew Brudel1,a producer. sue Engrish, a foreign editor. wilriam or Bill
Dunlop who is another editor. Nick Gowing, who is adiplomatic editor. Garren Baines, who is an editor or deputyeditor of channel 4 News. Richard Tate, io editor on channei4. And then on channel 3: Penny Marsha11, a reporter.
'Jeremy Irvin, a cameraman. Michael Lawrence, a soundrecordist. william or Bill Frost, a video tape editor. NigelBanker, a programme editor. Michael ,-Teremy, head of foreigi
news, channel 3. David Manion, an editor on rrN. victorii.Knight, a news editor. Finally, Mr. Thomas Deichman, who is a
German author and journalist. None of those names ring a beII



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
L2
t_3
14
15
15
t7
18
19

'20'2L
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
29
30
3t_
32
33
34
35
35
37
38

,i3 9
40
4L
42
43
44
45
46
47
48
49
50
51
52
53
54
55

with any of you in the sense of knowing them? Thank you very
much.

The cards wilr be shuffled and 12 of you wirl beselected to be the jury in this case.

(The -iury were sworn)

MR" .fusrrcE MORLAND: Ladies and gentlemen, the first thing r wantto say to you is this: you decide the facts in this cise andyou try this case on the evidence given in this court. rt isof the utmost importanee that you do not a11ow anyone todiscuss this case with you. you do not discuss trris caseyourself with anyone, and the time and the prace to discussthe case is when all 1,2 of you are together in the privacy ofyour retirement room. When I say you decide this case on the
evj-dence given in this court, it may be - r know not - that inthe media, in the press or radio or television there may be
some mention of this case. That is not the evidence in thiscase. You decide it on the evidence given here and. in thiscourt.

This case wiir last possibly three weeks. rt may beless than that.- rt may be, conceivably, a day or two loigerthan t.hat. Probably less rather than longer.-
our si-tting times wirl be quarter past ten in the

morning until one o'c1ock, two o'cl-ock unt1l about half pastfour. hle will have each day a break of about a quarter of anhour in the middle of the morning and probably a similar breakin the afternoon: certainly if we are goj_ng to sit to 4.30 wewi11. rf we have a short afternoon we prorinry will not.
The case will begin with rrtr. shierds, who is leading

counsel for t.he claimants, to open the case to you and that.will take certaj-n1y t.oday. rt wilL j-nvo1ve, &s you can see,you looking at various t.elevision fi1ms, rushes, progrrammes
and so forth.

r think perhaps the jurors in waiting should nowdepart. Thank you for coming here. your seivices may berequired elsewhere, f know not.

Mr. shierds, all those who have departed will want to
come back to their seats'before you start.

MR. SHIELDS: Yes, ily Lord. (After a pause) :

MR. ,fusrrcE MORITAND: rf there are no seats, r would prefer thatpeople sat in the ga11ery - there are a few seats in the frontrow of the ga11ery - rather than standing at the back. yes,
Mr. Shields

MR. sHrEtDs: Members of the jury, in this action the craimants,that is the parties bringing the action, seek damages for
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Iibe1, that is for damage to their reputation in respect of a
press release and arti-cle from the editorial published in a
magazine called Living Marxism in February L997. The
claimants are IndependenL Television News Ltd., who I will
probably call ITN for convenience from now on - the news
company which brings you the news on ITV and Channel 4; and
two journalists employed by ITN, Ian Williams for Channel 4 -
he siLs in front of me here - and Penny Marshall who works on
Channel 3 and she sits in front of me here.

IL is their case that t.he press release, the article
and the editorial which accompanied it, amounted to a highly
damaging attack upon their respective reputations and their
professional integrity.

The defendants are a Mr. Michael Hume who is the
editor of Living Marxism, and its joint publishers, Informinc
LM Ltd. and Helene Guldberg. Now, they are represented by my
learned friend Mr. Gavin Mi11ar, who sits here, together with
Mr. Ant.hony Hudson who sits there at the end of the row.

Members of t-he jury, one of your most important tasks
in this trial is to ilecide what the press release, the article
and the accompanying editorial meant, how they would have been
understood by reasonable, sensible people back in l-997. But
before I invite you t.o read t.hem, and it. may well be that, it
will be some time this afternoon, it is necessary that we
travel toget.her back in time t.o L992 to the country formerly
known as the Socialist Federal Republic of Yugoslavia. Sad1y,
by 1992 Yugoslavia, which had since L946 comprised of six
separate republics, was undergoing inner turmoil amongst its
citizens. In particular in Bosnia what might be described as
near civil war was raging between Bosnian Serbs and Bosnian
Musl-ims.

My Lord, it is not for us in the eourse of this trial
to pass judgment on the merit of that conflict, save that, ds
in any such conflict., it gave birth to furt.her examples of
man's inhumanity to man. The leader of the Bosnian Serbs was
a man called Radovan Karadich. According to the Bosnian
Muslims, the Serb leaders had embarked upon a policy called
ethnic cleansing. That, is, it was aimed at rooting out
Muslims from their homes and driving them out of the territory
which the Serbs claimed as their own. It was the contention
of the Bosnian Muslims in mid 1,992 that many Muslims were
being held in concentration camps run by their opponents. Not
surprisingly, there t^ras considerable worldwide i-nterest
whether such an allegat.ion could be substantiated or whether
in fact it was just anoEher piece of propaganda - false or
distorted information put out to mislead or confuse the
public.

In late 'Ju1y 1992 Mr. Karadich, the Bosnian Serb
leader, visited London. He gave a press conference. ft was
attended by a representative of ITN. The representative
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challenged Mr. Karadich as to whether such camps existed.
Mr. Karadich's response was to deny their existence and toinvite rrN to Yugoslavia to investigate for themselves.
Mr. Karadich having thrown down the gauntret, rrN duly pickedit up. You will hear how it was decided t.o send two Leparate
teams out there - one representing the channel 4 News arm ofITN, the other Channel 3.

Now, the first team to go was the channel 4 team. ranwilliams, then based as channel 4's correspondent in Moscow,
had covered the Gulf war, conflict.s in Georgia and on the
borders of Russia. He was told by sue English, the senior
foreign editor, to f1y to Budapest in Hungary where he was tojoin ot.her members of his team. His brief was this: it wasto visit those camps on the list and to find out. what was
there.

rn Budapest. he was joined by Andy McDowelr who was toact as produceri ,James Niklen a much travelled cameraman andeditor, and chris Heys a sound recordist. They also had their
equipment - hard helmets, flak jackets, edit pick, supplies offood and water_and o! course their camera. rts total weight
was something like 200 kilograms.

whilst in Budapest, ran wilriams was faxed from Londonwith the list - the list r have just referred you to - of
those camps which the Bosnian Muslims were alleging were
concentration camps. You are now going to be handed up a
bundle of documenLs and, with his Lordship's permission, youwill have one bundle between Lwo people. so Lwo of you will
have to share a bundle each. (Same handed). If you 1ook at
t.hat 

. 
bundle you will see in t.ab l- there is some minuscript

writing:
t'Attn - Mr. Jim Akhurst

'r ITN - Foreign News. rl

BeLow it wilr you will see in Engrish -- there are some
foreign words first and then below it says:

IILIST

,of prisons - coneentration camps controrled by the
aggressor. rr

That list has been issued by the Bosnian Musrims, and thenag'gressorsrr is obviously how they refer to the serbi-ans. soif_you have got that, below that, members of the jury, youwill see a list and it gays "P1ace,'and j-t says "Applox.number", that is approximate number of people kept wittrin
those camps. You turn over the page and you wil-1 see at the
bottom, go down to number 57, and you will notice there,
because we are going to come across this later, s4 and. 55,

7
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Trnopolje and omarska.
names t.here.

You will see those two particular

We are now back in Budapest and I will ret.urn to the
list 1ater, members of the jury. On 30th,Ju1y the Channel 4
team left Budapest where they had rendezvoused and travelled
by train to Belgrade. Now, Belgrade was the o1d capital of
Yugoslavia and had become the capital of Serbia. They booked
into a hotel there. Here they were joined the next day by a
team representing Channel- 3 News. It was 1ed by Penny
Marshall, who I have already introduced to you, who was
accompanied by Jeremy Irvj-n, a cameraman, and Mickey Lawrence,
and his role was to act as what is called soundman and
assistant to 'Jeremy frvin, the cameraman. Now, unlike the
Channel 4 team they did not have their own editor with them.
You will come t.o understand in the course of the trial what
the role of the editor is. He is the person who essentially
produces the film which is broadcast to you on the news at
night

You will hear from them as to what happened in
Belgrade but during those three days t.hey made two important
discoveries. First.Iy, that. the camps they visited near
Belgrade which had been st.igmatised in that list by the
Bosnian Serb Muslims as concentration camps were in reality
refugee camps and, secondly - this is their second discovery -
that contrary to t.he apparent open-spirit of Mr. Karadich's
invitation, there was a considerable reluctance on t.he part of
the Serbian authorities to al1ow them to travel to north west
Bosnia, that is wesL of Belgrade, where they understood, they
had been told, the worst camps to be.

In the event their persistence and their determination
to go t.here brought some limited reward. At 6.00 a.m. on the
morning of 3rd August they were flown by helicopter. That is
the team from ITN, t.ogether with two interpreters and a Mr. Ed
Vulliamy from the Guardian newspaper, together with two
Serbian soldiers t.o Pale. Now, that is an hour's flight away.
r sai-d limited reward was brought through their perseverance
because Pale, which is a former ski resort. outside Sarajevo,
was south of Belgrade, whereas the camps they wanted to visit
were in north west Bosnia.

So that you get a picture of where we are travelling,
we have prepared a map. 'If you turn to index tab 2, we will
be able to see together where we are. At the top of the map
you wi}l see Budapest where they met. You will know they
travelled south to Belgrade. From Belgrade they have taken
the flight down to Pale and that. is where we are. We will
refer to that in the course of this opening speech so you know
exact,ly where we are heading.

Now they are in Pa1e, and you might wonder what
happened next. We11, after a fruitless morning waiting at the
headguarters of the Bosnian Serbs there, they met

BEVBRLTTTNI'NNERY&CO
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Mr. Karadich. You remember I have already referred to
Mr. Karadich. It was he who made the invitation for ITN to
come out and see whether the Muslim allegations were true or
false. What Mr. Karadi-ch did for his part was to warn them
that the area they wanted to vi-sit was unsafe, but for their
part they reminded him of his promise made on television and
said t.hat. t.hey were prepared t.o take the risk-

They spent that night in Pale not knowing whet.her they
were going to be allowed to visit the camps up nort.h or not.
The next day they travelled, however, in a military bus to
Banja Luka where again they spent the night. Now; if you
would like to go back to your maps, w€ can plot their
progress. We see down there Pale, and they have travelled in
a bus through the day up to Banja Luka.

The following morning I am sorry, they then
travelled to Prj-jedor. You see Prijedor is the end of the row
- there is Omarska, Trnopelje and we will see Prijedor. So
they travelled the following day to Prijedor. That. is the
morning of 5th August. While at Prijedor, I think it is
outside the town hall, they see and they talk to and they film
queues of Bosnian women. It. appears that they are there
waiting for papers to enable them to move away from the area.
Now, where were their husbands, it was asked, and the
whispered response came Omarska. The fTN team was taken into
the Lown ha11 at Prijedor where, surrounded by armed men, they
meL and filmed the town's leadership. Once again, they had to
overcome a certain resistance to their stated intention to
visit those camps at Omarska and Trnopolje. But, once again,
thej-r persistence prevailed and that same day they were taken
to Omarska travelling, in the case of the Channel 4 team - and
remember I think there are four of them pl-us an interpreter
in a green military bus but they have Serbian guards with
them; in the case of t.he Channel 3 team, in a red mini bus
which they had hired.

Now, members of the jury, in the course of t.his trial
you will hear from the ITN teams in great. detail about. what
they saw at Omarska and, perhaps more importantly, what they
sensed and what they felt about, what was happening there, the
atmosphere of fear, the haunted looks on the faces of t.he
inmates as they eat their rations of soup and bread, and of
the menacing presence of the guards, and perhaps most poignant
of all of the camp commaitder's resolute refusal to give them
free access to where the inmates were being kept, where they
were sleeping.

Unwelcomed at Omarska they drove on until they
approached Trnopolje. Seeing lots of people collected behind
a fence, the Channel 3 team and the ITN van insisted on
stopping. Penny Marshall, Mickey Lawrence and .Jeremy frvin,
the Channel 3 team, took the most direct route to that fence.
Among the sights that was to greet them there was that of an
emaciated man, stripped to the waist in the hot sun, behind
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barbed wire. Ian Wj-Iliams, leading the Channel 4 team, headed
off deliberately in a different direction but towards the same
wire in order to dj-vert. the presence of the armed guards who
were escorting them. As you will hear, Ian Williams was
struck by the poor physical condit.ion of the men who were
packed in t.he field, patrolled by armed guards and, as far as
he could see, penned in by barbed wire and chicken wire.

Members of the jury, this morning and this afternoon
you will hear and see footage of the appalling physical
condition of some of those men. You will see foot.age of the
armed guards who were there. You will also see how all t.hose
and you will hear from all of them - who visited both those

camps were shocked by what they saw. After about an hour they
left Trnopolje. They carried with them not only their film of
the camp but also an undeveloped role of film. One of those
who Penny Marshall had interviewed while she was in Trnopolje
was a doctor, Dr. Idriz Merdzani-c. He had told her of the
terrible physical condition of some of those who had been
brought to that camp, of torture, of beatings and of rape.
Now he had handed her a camera containing the film which he
had secretly taken o.f inmates at that camp.

The ITN team returned to Prijedor and from Prijedor
they travelled together in the Channel 3 minibus back to
Belgrade. In Belgrade they reported the ITN staff in London
and they told them they had managed to visit the camps and
that they felt they had a powerful story. It was agreed that
the two teams, but without Mr. Lawrence and Mr. Irvin -- it. is
very hard to remember all these names, Mr. Lawrence was the
sound recordist and Mr. Irving was the cameraman on Channel
3's team, and Mr. Heys was t.he sound recordist on the Channel
4 team. Apart from them, they should travel to Budapest. the
next day and prepare items to be broadcast on ITV Channel 3
and on Channel 4 that. night. So t.his is August 5th making
preparations for August 5th. As I mentioned to you, there was
no editor with the Channel 3 team. There was Mr. Irving,
there was Mr. Lawrence, and there was Penny Wi11iams. So a
decision was made in London to fly out to Budapest two
editors, a Mr. Frost and a Nigel Baker to edit the film and
prepare the item to be broadcast.

Now, members of the jury, you probably appreciate that
what you see on your screen, a news j-tem which may sometimes
last 30 seconds, which may sometimes last, particularly on
Channel 4, three or four or five minutes, is the product of a
much longer and involved process. Based on the first-hand
evidence of the reporter and the film shot by the cameraman or
cameramen, judgments have to be made as to what should be
broadcast and what commentary should accompany it. You have
already heard how both these teams were sent out with
instructions to take up Mr- Karadich's invitation, and their
task as they saw it was to reporL back on what they had seen
and found out. It is important that you understand and
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remember this. They were sent out to t.ake up that invitation
and report back on what they had seen and found out.

That. day in Budapest., August 5th, they set about
discharging the final element of that task. Now, for ran
Wi1llams, Andy Brudell and James Nicholas for Channel 4 it was
an opportunity t.o see for the first time the film they had
shot, because, as you appreciate, they are at the camps and
the film is being shot. This is going to be the firsl time
they I,"y" a chanie to see that fil-m, ind that film is tnown Uya technical term - it is ca1Ied rushes. you will hear that
term again and again in this trial, rushes. It is the
unedited fi1m. This might be an appropriate moment, then for
us to see that f i-Im together now. So with your Lordship, s
leave, I propose to show t,he Channel 4 rushes. So you know
where we begin. we begi-n on the day of August Gth and we aregoing to begin with film at Prijedor. so if you look at your
maps, members of the jury, index 2, we are beginning on August.
5th at Prijedor, and then we are going to go from prijedor to
omarska and then Trnopolje. This is the unedited film.

LVideo recordinq played)

L2.20 p.m.

MR. sHrELDs: Members of the jury, it had been agreed back in
London that the first major broadcast was t.o take place in the
Channel 4 news at 7 p.m. that night and the Channel 4 team had
to produce an item for broadcast for about four to five
minutes left. You will hear in the course of the trial what
discussions took place between Mr. williams, Andy prudel and
James Nicholas and how, having chosen the picture images they
wished to incorporate, ran wi1lj-ams then began draft.ing the
script, the script which will accompany the images which are
broadcast that night.. He had a deadrine that was G.30 that
evening t.o feed (that is, to transmit) the material from
Budapest through to London.

Meanwhile, a similar process was being undertaken by
the channel 3 news team. They started somewhat later than
their channer 4 counterparts because they had technical
difficulties with the editing equipment. penny Marsharl
briefed Nige1 Baker and Bill Frost. Those are the two editors
who had flown over from London to help them prepare and edit
t.he broadcast. She bri'efed them as to what she had seen atthe camps and what her own impressions were because, of
course, she had been there and she had seen both Omarska she
had seen Trnopolje. Together they reviewed the rushes. Thisis the film shot by the channer 3 cameraman ,Jeremy rrving.
You are going to see those rushes now but it is right thit you
should know that they are not complete because, after their
return to London in 1992, one tape went missing. What is
missing is the last part of their visit to omaika (that is,
Ehe first camp) and the first part of their visit to Trnopolje(that is, the second camp). So you are going to see those
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1 t.apes which survived. They will take, r think, about 25/3a
2 minutes and should take us conveniently to the midday
3 adjournment.
4
5 (Video recordinq played)
5
7 MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Would that. be convenient? We will break offB until 2 o'c1ock, members of the jury.
9

l-0 (Adiourned for a short time)

BAITBRLAI F T{I'NNBRY & CO
OFFICLAI. SEORTEAND WRITER,S!

L2



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
B

9
10
l-1
t2
13
L4
15
t5
L7
1B
19
20
21-
22
23
24
25
26
27
2B
29
30
31
32
33
34
35
35
37
3B
39
40
4t
42
43
44
45
46
47
4B
49
50
51-
52
53
54
55

BE1IBRLBT F NI'NNIRY & CO
OTFIEI,AL SEORTEAND WRITIRS

MR. WSTICE MORLAND: yes, Mr. Shields?

MR. SHTELDS: Members of the jury, we have just seen channel 3....In addition to preparing a fj-Im to be bioadcast that. night for
News at ren, Penny Marshall also gave a brief telephoneinterview for the lunchtime news which was broaacait that dayand she also prepared a short piece to be transmitt.ed at 5.4i)on the Channel 3 news, where again you will see she gave afurther interview.

As you can imagine, it was an intense and franticperiod, that d"y, August 5th, in Budapest. Art.hough the teamsworked separatery, channel- 4 decided to incorporate some ofthe material obtained by channel 3 in its own report to bebroadcast at r o'cIock. some of that material, i should t.err
You, is material- which was on the rushes which have been fosi,which is why, when you see the broadcastr fou wirl not haveseen it before. one is am image of a body of a Muslim. Hisname is Fikret A1ic, and r will repeat th;t name, and it willbe repeated to you many times in the course of t.his t.rial. ir"is the emaciated man whom penny Marshall had seen standingbehind barbed_wire wlen she arrived at the Trnopolj" ""*plYou may recall_ I told you about that.

The other material which was incorporated in thechannel 4 broadcast which came from channel 3 was somephot.ographs. you also may reca11 r tord you how, when theyleft rrnopolje, penny Marshall had with her a camera, a cameracontaining film which had been handed to her by the doctor.
He was a doct.or you may also recall- havi-ng seen in the rushes.
He was in his r call it his surgery foi convenience. you
may remember the camera panning in on the table containing
some few humble pieces of medicine. penny Marshall hadarranged for that film to be developed that. morning' inBudapest. Not all of t.he photographs came out, buI it is onlyright you should see those that they had, as deveroped thatday in Budapest.

rf you could turn t,o tab 3 you will see with me thosephotographs. You will see there what obviously appears to bea photograph of r will carl it a camp. ovei t-he page
another photograph would appear to be of the camp, and-another
one would appear to be of_the_camp. Then we go 6ver the pageLo a photograph which is fairly meanj-ngless, but it is delm5ato come out. Then we turn over again to another picture whichshould hawe a yeIlow lorry in it, turning over at the samerate. r turn over again t.o another picture of the tree, and.over once more and in the middre of the picture there is a
man with a hat on askew. Then we turn over and we see aslightly different type of phorograph. rt is the imate--or a
pan.and you will see the back of hii body is bad1y, bialybruised. Then you turn over the page 

"rr& 
yo, wili see anotherpicture of the back of a man. rhese were li"tures taken bythe doctor and handed to penny Marshalr at the camp, and tirefilm which she had developed. over the page yo.., =L" " fi"i"ru
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of blood below a basin. Then again another picture of a basinwith blood on the f l-oor and on t.he wal-l. Then you will seethe next photograph is the back of a man, an emaciated man,
taken from behind. Then the final photograph is t.hat same man
and you will see his back.

Those, members of the jury, are the photographs which
had come from that camera containing that film which- had beenin effect smuggled out of Trnopolje.

That d"y, particularly that night, Channel 4 and
channel 3 broadcast long news reports based in part on what
was being transmitted from Budapest. Now r am going to show
you first the channel 4 broadcast, then r am going io show you
the Channel 3 broadcast. What you will see from the Channel 4
broadcast on August 6th is News at ren, and then you will see
t.he channel 3, and r think you see a lunchtime short.
broadcast, and then a 5.45 broadcast, and then the principal
broadcast which took place that night on News at Ten. We will
have the 7 o'clock Channel 4 to start with, and then the otherthree as I told you.

iviaeo necorainq playedf

3.05 p.m.

MR" SHIELDS: Members of the jury, those broadcasts captured worldattent.ion and aroused strong emotions. Although you may havenoticed that a number of reports filed by Penny Uarshall andIan Wil-liams contaj-n the words ttconcentration -amps, that was
as a result. of a decision taken by both teams, both on the
ground there and by the editorial team in London. The media,
both broadsheet and tablold, disprayed their repugnance anddisgust in strong and even emotive language.

The next day's broadcast.s on both rrv and Channel 4
contained yet further reports and interviews with Ian Williams
and Penny Marsha11, and I t.hink it is only right for
completeness that you should see them now. r do not know ifyour Lordship wanted to have a short break before that. They
are about 40-odd minutes in length.

MR. WSTICE MORLAND: Would you like a short break, members of thejury? Yes. We will have a short break. We will say aquarter of an hour break because there is, r think, Lea andcoffee making machinery in your room. r do not think thereare any other alternatives.
(Adiourned for a short time)

MR. ,JUSTfCE MORLAND: Yes, Mr. Shields?

IIR. SHIELDS: My Lord, we will now wat.ch the Channel 4 and Channel
3 broadeasts the next day, Augmst 6th. rt takes about 45
minutes.

14
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MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Yes.
will we?

We will not go beyond that probably,

MR. sHrELDs: My Lord, r definitely wilr read the press releaseafter that.
MR. ,JUSTfCE MORLAND: you would like to do that?
MR. SHfELDS: I would definit.ely like t.o do that.
MR. .IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes, right.
MR. SHTELDS: r am sorry, but we had Lo show these and they dotake time.

MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

(Video recordj-nq plaved)

4.10 p.m.

MR- SHTELDS: Memlcels ef,- th€ jury, a week later penny Marshall infact did return and you will- see footage of her ireeting withDr. Merdzanic - you remember the doctor who took the tit_m
and you will hear how the barbed wire had by then been taken
down and how conditions at the camp had suddenly improved.

Now, members of the jury, we musL go forward in timeto L997 and come to the words of which complaint is made. rfyou turn to tab 4 in your bundre you will see there, and r am
now going to read it to you, a press release issued on 24th,ranuary L997 by Living Marxism, and this was senL to a numberof media organisations, a substantiar number of mediaorganisations, orr that d.y, no doubt. with a view to it beingpicked up and its cont.ents reported. Let us look at what iIsays together in bold t1rye:

rrilournalist, exposes the truth behind Bosnia ,death-
camp' photograph

"The picture that came to symbolise the Bosnian war
has been condemned by an expert witness to the uN war
Crimes TribunaL at The Hague. German journalist
Thomas Deichmann says that the image oi an emaciated
Bosnian Muslim caged behind barbed wire was created by
'camera angles and editing,.
I'The picture provoked an international outcry and was
seen by much of the world as proof Lhat the iosnianserbs were running Nazi-style 'concentration camps,.But Deichmann in an exclusive articre published inFebruary's LM magazine insists that ,tle image ismisleading and has fooled the wor1d,.

15



1 I'The picture of Fikret Alic was taken from videotape
2 shot at Trnopolje on 5 August 1-992 by an award-winning
3 British t.elevision team 1ed by Penny Marshall (ITN)
4 with her cameraman Jeremy Irvin, accompanied by Ian
5 Williams (Channel 4) and Guardian report.er Ed
6 Vulliamy.
7
B ,'Deichmann has revisited Trnopolje and has al-so seen
9 unused video footage that shows how this powerful

10 image was created. He found that
11
a2 rro there was no barbed wire fence surrounding the
13 Trnopolje camp.
L4
15 trra the camp was a collection centre for refugees, not
15 a prison.
1_7

18 "o the refugees in the picture were not surrounded by
19 barbed wire. The barbed wire surrounded the news team
20 who were filming from inside a sma11 enclosure next to

. Zt t,he camp.
22
23 "Thomas Deichmann says
24
25 't'I am shocked that over the past four and a half
26 years, none of the journalists involved has told the
27 full story about that barbed wire fence which made
2B such an impact on world opinion. The photograph has
29 been taken as proof that Trnopolje was a Nazi-sty1e
30 concentration camp, but the journalists knew t.hat i-t
31 was no such thing.'
32
33 "Mick Hume, LM editor, says
34
35 't'If they are noL very careful-, journalists who have
35 some kind of emotional attachment in a conflict. can
37 end up seeing what they want to see, rather than what
38 is really there. Taking sides cannot be an excuse for

.:,,,J,! taking libert.ies with the facts.rr
40
4l Members of the jury, you will see the references there in
42 unequivocal terms to Penny Marshall., to Ian Williams and the
43 reference beside Penny Marshall's name to IfN, and we say that
44 anyone reading that would be under no illusion as to what was
45 being alleged against those two journalists and the company
46 that employed them and broadcast those images.
47
48 r,fournalist exposes the truth behind Bosnia 'death-49 carrp' photograptr[
50
51 The third paragraph down:
52
53 "Deichmann has revisited Trnopolje and has also seen
54 unused video footage that shows how this powerful
55 imagre was created. He found that
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Ira there was no barbed wire fence surrounding the
Trnopolje camp

rra the camp was a collection cent.re for refugees, not
a prison-

"o the refugees in the picture were not surrounded by
barbed wire. The barbed wire surrounded the news Leam
who were filming from inside a smal1 enclosure next to
the camp. rr

You see, what we sd1r, and anyone reading that press release
t.hat day would have understood it to mean, is this: t.he
claimants, ITN, Penny Marshall and fan Williams, had
fabricat.ed and broadcast distorted television foot.age which
deliberately misrepresented and sensationalised the treatment
of Bosnian Muslims at Trnopolje, that - and you might t.hink
this is just as grave a charge - they had set out to distort
the truth because they had taken sides. We say it bears t.hat.
meaning, which we say i-s an extremely serious meaning to
allege against this company and its journalists, these
reporters, when you ]ook at what Mr. Hume says in that final
paragraph

ruff they are not very careful, journalists who have
some kind of emotional attachment in a conflict can
end up seeing what. they want to see, rather than what
is reaI1y there. Taking sides cannot be an excuse for
taking liberties with the facts'.tl

Well-, what does that convey, or would that. have conveyed to
someone reading it at the time? A false picture, a
distort.ion, that. they have taken sides. And if you take
sides, the danger of taking sides is, according to Mr. Hume,
t.hat you see what you want to see. That is his indictment of
their conduct. And, to make matters worse, what they also
allege i-s that Lhey have kept guiet about this deception for
over four and a half years.

Now, just pause there and think what serious
allegations there are that are being made against them.

Now, not surprisingly, you might think, they did not
take very kindly to having their reputations assailed
completely out of the blue in this uray. Not a word of notice
beforehand t.hat these allegations are going to be made against
them. They caused a letEer to be written on 24th January L997
because all they wanted was to stop this magazine being
published maintaining this attack upon them. If you turn to
tab 5, it is the last thing I think I can do tonight, I can
read that letter. It is addressed to Mr. Mick Hume. He is
the editor of Living Marxism and is the person whose quote
I have just, read out to you that comes at the end of:the press
release.
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"Dear Sir

'twe represent rndependent relevision News Limited(ITN), Penny Marshall and Ian Williams, both ITNjournalists.
I'On Thursday 23 ,.Tanuary 1997 you put out (through UNS)a presentat.ion release headed 'Journalist expos6s thetruth behind Bosnia "death camp photographu, which wasseriously defamatory of our clients.

"The press release incorrectly alleged that the rrNreports on Channel Four News and News at Ten on GAugust 1992 (by Ian Williams and penny Marshall
respectively) were misleading and fooled the world.It. was suggested that the image of an emaciated
Bosnian moslem was created (by implication fabricated)by 'camera angles and editing,. your press release
asserted tha! rrN and its journalists saw what they
wanted to se-e rather than what ,as rea11y there, t6oksides, took liberties with the facts andl shockingry
you cIaim, failed to tell the ful1 story about
Trnopolje Camp.

tlThese allegations are repeated in the article due tobe published, we understand, on Thursday next week, inthe February edition of Living Marxism.

"These defamatory allegat.ions are who1ly faIse. They
must be wit.hdrawn immediately and an appropriate
apology made. The arti-cre must be withdrawn from the
February edition and any existing copies pulped. Ourclients are also entitled to compensation- tor thepublication of such bogus claims.
rrAs a result of t.he press release our client has
already received inguiries from media organisations
about the proposed story and we note thaE the press
release invites editors to cont.act the editor ofr,iving Marxism and German journalist rhomas Deichmannvia your press officer. crearly it has been decided
to seek to obtaih the maximum publicity from peddling
these farse allegations of which you did not iee fitto inform ITN prior to publication and give our
clients an opportunity to rebut the untiue asserLionsset out in the press release and article.
I'Anyone who saw the news reports, which $/ere fai.r andimpartial, could not reasonibly have drawn the
conclusions you published. We require that you
preserve all drafts of the article and other documentsrelat,ing to it and the press release so that the

1B



1 motives for inventing such allegrations can, if
2 appropriate, be examined in due course.
3
4 "On behalf of our clienLs we therefore require:-
5
5 u1. The publicat.ion of an appropriate, agireed apology
7 on IINS, PA and such other nev/s services which carried
B your press release.
9

10 '12. An undertaking not. to repeat the allegations
11 contained in the press release and article complained
a2 of.

1i rr3. The destruction of all copies of Living Marxism
15 containing the art j-c1e complained of .

L6
1-7 n4. Damages for IibeI.
18
19 r'5. Payment of our clients' reasonable legal costs.
20

,'., 27- rrWe l-ook forward to heari-ng from you, or your
22 solicitors, by return. The seriousness of Lhe
23 defamatory allegations you make means that unless they
24 are withdrawn immediately our client.s will commence
25 proceedings for 1ibe1."
26
27 We1I, members of the jury, they were not wiE.hdrawn.
28 The arti-cle was published and 1f you turn over the tab to tab
29 6, you will see i-t there , LM 97 . There is Lhe picture which
30 by now you are familiar with.
31
32 "IL became the symbol of the horrors of the Bosnian
33 war. But it is not. guite what it seems.
34
35 "Exclusive
36
37 "The picture that fooled the world.r'
38

,,,39 That is quite a long article and it, as we sEly, repeating in::: 40 much more detail the allegations which I have already touched
4L on in the press releases. If his Lordship is happy, I would
42 suggest that tomorrow morning we begin the proceedings by you
43 reading it to yourselves, and I will make some comments about
44 ir.
45
46 MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Members of the jury, would you like to leave
47 now and be back here at guarter past ten. Would you be good
48 enough to leave all your notes and your ring binders here.
49 No-one will look at them. Any notes you make will not be
50 looked aL by anybody. It J-s very important that notes in
51 court do not get out accidentally through being left behind on
52 the tube or a bus or in a taxi, so if you could leave your own
53 personal notes here I can assure you the court is locked and
54 nobody will look at them. If you would like to go now, I have
55
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got a few administrative matters to deal with and we will
continue tomorrow morning at quarter past ten.

(The iurv left the court)

JUSTICE MORLAND: Before members of the media leave f repeat
what. I said at the pre-trial review or the management
conference. Of course, nothing can be reported that j-s said
in the absence of the jury until the verdict is given. Yes,
Mr. Shields?

SHIELDS: My Lordr /our l,ordship will recall that. at the PTR
my learned friend indicat.ed that he intended to cross-examine
on the basis of footage shot. by Serbian cameramen who were
also present at the camp.

,JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

SHIELDS: And he rightly took the point against me that as no
objection had been made to their authenticity he would be
freely ent.itled to do so. If your Lordship would pick up the
transcript, your Lordship wilL see at p.8 how he put his case
in relation to that footage.

JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

SHIELDS: Your Lordship will see at the bottom:

"One of the difficulties in a sense of managing the
trial and managing the justification defence, which
involves proof of the layout of the camp, is that
there are out-takes, video footage from t.wo cre\,/s, two
ITN crews on t.he day plus some footage from a t.hird
crew, a Serbian film crew who were filming, ds it.
were, and that footage was not taken for the purpose
of making it clear to the jury ten years' later what
the layout of the camp is. It was taken for other
purposes. So what one sees on the footage is a series
of parLs of shots or clues. They are a de-constructed
film from which as a total exercise one can, as
Mr. Deichmann says he did, construct a clear picture
of the layout of the campr'.

What we are going to invj-te the jury to look at are the rushes
from that. point of view, and no doubt as we}l from other
points of view as we11, and it seemed to us it would make
sense if that happened at an early stage of the trial, for
them to do t.he viewing. As I understand it, he is going to
use the Serbian footage to that end.

My learned friend a1so, during some stage last week,
and I apologise I cannot remember the exact day, senL us a
transcript of the Serbian tape. Can f hand up the transcript
he has sent us?

BEI/ERLEI
ogrlcrA,,
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MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. SHIELDS: (Same handed) Your L,ordship may recaIl I guite
underst.and if your Lordship does not st.anding next to
Fikret Alic is another man, a slightly better nourished man,
and the Serb transcript tape contains an interview of him by
Penny Marsha11. Of course, that. image is not. part. of the ITN
rushes because if it was, it would form part of the rushes
which are no longer available. He kindly sent me this
transcript of the Serb tape and I would like your Lordship to
Iook at it. Would your Lordship like to read it to yourself?

MR. .IUSTICE MORI,AND:
that.

Yes. (after a pause) Yes, f have read

MR. SHIELDS: Your Lordship has read that. I am assuming it is
intended to put. that piece of transcript t.o Penny Marsha11.
I ask myself this somewhat rhetorically: Your Lordship will
recall what the particulars of justification are and your
Lordship will find them, if your Lordship sti1l has your PTR
bundle, in volume L, if one looks at p.33, 34, and 35.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND, Ye-s .

MR" SHIELDS: Your Lordship will see, if one turns to, sdy, for
example, the one that reminds oneself what the meanings are,
that is at 32 (a), and then one looks at 34 for the particular
which is supporting that. I invite your Lordship t.o look at,
particularly, subparagraphs (7), (B) and (9) , which we would
say would appear to be the sting of the defence.

MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. SHIELDS: My concern is this. If it is going to be put to
Mr. Williams and Penny Marshall that they were aware that
there was other material within their possessi-on which would
indicate or show that the prisoners were not prisoners at a1I,
that people were happy there and that they had chosen to
distort the report by suppressing that information, that is a
different line of attack from the one which is presently
pleaded.

The sting of the defence at the moment, as
I understand it, is that it is the journalists who are caged
in by the barbed wired, 'not Fikret Alic, and essentially the
image which has been used to transmit has falsely conveyed
that he was in prison and caged in barbed wired. That is the
nub of the defence. If it is going to go further and suggest
that in relation to the rushes we have seen, or other rushes
which we no longer have, that there exists further maEerial
from which that inference could be drawn, then it is a matter
which should have been pleaded. That may not mean your
Lordship will want to keep it out now. I am not saying it
should come in now, but if it is going to be put that way, it
has to be pleaded t.hat way.
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MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. sHrELDs: My Lord, in fairness to my learned friend we sent al-etter to him on Friday, but he did not get it, because it wasnot sent unt.il late Friday night, so he has not had aopportunity to consider this in an real detail.
MR. JUSTTCE MORLAND: Mr. Mil1ar, fty first view is that't.his pointof Mr. Shields is a valid one but I certainly would give -le"r"

to amend if you so requested it.
MR. MTLLAR: My Lord, my learned friend is right to say that thisissue was first raised in a letter that was faxed Lhrough at

7 .1"5 on Friday night to my instructing solici_tors.
MR. iIUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. MTLLAR: He, having gone home for the weekend, it did not cometo my attention until this morning.

MR. .]USTICE MORLAND: No.

MR. MILLAR: In additiont to which when f saw it I was not entirelyclear what. the point. was that was being taken. r have, in th6
course of the day, sought some clarification from my learnedfriend- I think it is now clearer in the light of what he hasput t.o your Lordship what the issue is. r am obviousl_y keento consider what he has just said overnight and the way he has
now put it, and r do not think there is any objection Lo *e
doing t.hat.

MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: No.

MR- MTLLAR: As r understand it, what is wanted is written
responses to that solicitors' letter which forms an answer toit, clarified as it has been by my learned friend,s comments
now. we will endeavour to draft something tonight, but r do
want to understand before we go off today -- and r t.hink weprobably all do what exactly is the eitent of the
submission and what exactly we are arguing about here. At thedirections hearing the issue of the aamisEiUility of the Serb
tape was raised, your Lordship will remember

MR. .IUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. MILIJAR: We established that it was prima facie admissible asmaterial served under the CPR because its provenance had not
been disputed, it is therefore taken to be admitted, that itis a- tape as described on the list taken by a Serb film crewat the camp on the relevant day. your Lord.ship will recarltlat you took the point, well then, presumably iL also showsMiss Marshall or Mr. williams. The lnswer is it shows
Miss Marshall.

MR. JUSTICE MORIJAND: Yes-
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MR. MILLAR: Your Lordship has not seen that and were the
submission to be going any further than the submission that
has been made, whi-ch is put on the basis of the transcript,
I would ask your Lordship obviously to see the Serb tape
before belng invited to make any rulings on it. of any
importance. It seems obvious approprj-ate that you should do
that, if you have not. seen it.

MR. ,IUSTICE MORLAND: Certainly I would not make any rulings
excluding the Serb tape.

MR. MILLAR: Absolut.e1y.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Or saying that you could not show it to one
of the claimants' witnesses or the claimanLs and say: 'rWe11,
look at this tape. Were you present? Did you hear this
conversati-on? " and so forth

MR. MILLAR: Precisely. My Lord, f am grateful. I am not
pressing your Lordship to see j-t now because as I understand
what is being put, that is not the submission. You are not
being invited to rule

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: No.

MR. MILLAR: -- that the tape cannot be shown in the trial and
then f cannot put it to the jury. What my learned friend
wants t.o know is in respect of cross-examination of
Miss Marshall, drn I going Lo put the transcript to her, and if
so, to what end, and he wants t.o pursue a pleading point. as he
is enti-tled to, in the light of our clarification of that
issue. That is as I understand where we have got to.

MR. ,fUSTICE MORLAND: Yes .

MR. MILLAR: The reason I wanted to raise that at this stage was
this. It is obvious that. whaL f want to put in cross-
examinati-on to Miss Marshall is going to depend to some
extent, ds it always does in any case, on what she says in-
chief.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Quite.

MR. MILLAR: Any arg-ument about how I might ultimately use that
transcript, if at all in cross-examination, I would not want
to be finally resolved one way or the other until close of her
examination-in-chief for that reason. My more immediate
concern is this, that as I understand the case being advanced
by the claimants from the pleading in Mr. Williams's statement
(who is the first witness in time, indeed f think he is the
first one we are going to have), his case is that at the point
at which that Serb film was being taken and showing
Miss Marshall and others at the f,ence, and Fikret A1ic, he is
in a different location but at the same side of the same
fence.
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MR " .JUSTI CE MORI,AND : Yes .

MR. MILLAR: I am going to be looking with him in cross-
examination, as you would expect, in a 1itt.1e detair at his
movements around the camp by reference to the rushes and where
he and his crew are shown to be on the rushes.

MR. ,]USTICE MORLAND: Yes .

MR. MTLLAR: r want, in the course of that cross-examination, toput to him at the appropriate chronological point t.hat part ofthe serb tape, not to ask him questions about. the translript,
because r understand his answer would be: ,'That was all a
distance away from me and out of my earshot,,.

MR. ,fUSTf CE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. MTLLAR: But as part of the complete picture of the movement
of the t$ro crews around the camp, in the initial stage when
they would go into what we say is the barbed wire compound, to
see in particurar where they were j-n relation to him lnd tothe extent that he w_as conscious of what they were doing. of
course he uses the image, ?s you have heard,-in his report,
even though it is not taken by a c4 eameraman. He usei the
image of A1ic. So that sort of cross-examj-nation is going to
be pursued with Mr. Williams. If my learned friend j-a contentfor that and we are not going to have to argue about that,
that is on the footing that I am not putting the transcript toMr. williams because it was out of his earshot, there is notgoing to be a problem. But if he is going to dispute my rightto do that then I would be grateful if that could be reEolved
because the cross-examination of Mr. Williams is going to have
to start tomorrow.

MR. iTUSTICE MORLAND: Yes, Mr. Shields.

MR. SHTELDS: My Lord, it is putting the cart before the horse
because your Lordship knows a defendant in a libe] act.ion is
confined to his pleaded case. The claimant deals in the
evidence in chief with the pleaded case. It is not a question
of waiting to hear how the evidence in chief develops Co
decide whether you put an allegation or not or decide to
introduce an arregat,ion or not. The reason we have to complywith the particurars is that everyone knows before cross-
examination starts what'is the case which is going to be made
against any particular party

our submission is this. rf it is going to be assertedin addition to the present, pleaded particulars-that on thebasis of the Serbian footage it can be put that Miss Marshall
chose to ignore other relevant statemenls made by inmates of
the camp from which it can be inferred either that there was
no imprisonment or someLhing j-n relation to the barbed wire
though r know not what. rt undoubtedly has to be pleaded, put
in writing before she gives her evidenie. rt applies to any
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other area of cross-examj-nation which is going to be developed
which is not specifically pleaded. That is why we have
particulars, that is why we have further and bett.er
particulars. It is quite clear from Gatley, at 33.9 that your
evidence j-s conf ined to your part.iculars. It is a very
sensible demarcation of the ambit of cross-examination.
I have not got up and said: I'Under no circumstances, I submit.
to your Lordship, can it be put" because your Lordship saj-d
the Serbian footage can come in. But if it. is going to be
part of the case from which the jury are going to be invited
to infer that as the art.icle, we sdlr surely means they
delj-berately adopLed a philosophy aimed at distorting the
footage and carried it t.hrough then it is crucial to that
allegation that it be so put and so pleaded.

So what I am inviting my learned friend to do is not
to wait and see how it d.evelops in cross-examination but to
put his hands up, in so far as he has to put them up, and say:
"This is it. This is the allegation which I am making against
you, Miss Marshall", and in so far as he is going to use it to
make an allegation agaj-nst Mr. Williams I am entitled to know
what the allegation is. Because if the allegation, for
example, is this: 'tYou did not. make enougth inquiries to find
out what someone else was saying and from that we can infer
that you deliberately chose to use that image because it
conveyed your journalistic attachment Lo the cause'r, it would
surely have to be pleaded because it is a particular from
which the jury are going to be invited to construe that they
did so behave. These are serious allegations and if they are
going to be made t.hey ought just to be pleaded. So that is
what I am inviting now, and when they are pleaded then we can
look at them.

MR. ,JUSTICB MORLAND: Mr. Millar, the onus is on the defendants
t.o establ-ish just.ification and in my judgment, subject to
anything you say, where you are in possession of material upon
which you may seek to justify a defamatory charge you must
plead it. and not in effect keep it up your sleeve, deciding
whether to use i-t or not. This is not something which has
come to your attention at a late stage. Sometimes in cases
thing emerge in evidence in chief, or indeed in eross-
examinafion, or even later in the course of a 1ibe1 trial
which would justify an amendment to plead a particular of
justification. Here you should be in a posiEion to be able to
particularise in writingi what you are relying on by way of
particulars against both Penny Marshall and Ian Wi1Iiams.

MR. MILLAR: My Lord, I thought f had undertaken, and I give the
undertaking again to do that overnight and respond in a
letter.

MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. It is entirely up to you whether you
wish Eo use those particulars in cross-examination but of
course because the charge has been made by way of particulars
of justification iE is entirely a matter for Mr. Shields
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whether he wishes the claimants to deal with the mat.ter inchief.

MR. MTLLAR: r follow t.hat and all r was trying to clarify at t.heoutset is what are we being asked to cover in response t.o thelett.er. I think it is now clear.
MR. ,JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. MILLAR: How is the film relied on as against Miss Marsha1lin cross-exami-nation? How is it relied on in the course ofcross-examination of Mr. williams? we are not being askedto engage i! ? formal pleading exercise at this stage, dsr understand it, but to indicate in writing the answers tothose questions.

MR- WSTICE MORLAND: ft does not matter whether it is a technicalpleading or not, the important thing is that it is crear inwriting what inferences you are dra*ing against the individualclaimants Penny Marshall and Ian Williams-in relatj-on to theserbian tape and the transcript. Furthermore, of course,Mr. Shields and his --instructing solicitors, and indeed penny
Marshall and Ian Williams are entitled to consider togetherlbeing parties, t.hose allegations when they reach them inwriting before they give evidence. For eiample, to take aperfect.ly proper tactical decision, whether Lo deal with theallegation in evidence in chief or say: ,,we will wait andhear how the cross-examination is put.'r But that. is clearly
something to which bot,h Penny Marshall and Ian Williams areentitled to seek advice.

MR. MILLAR: Yes, I accept t.hat. Having said that, in
circumstances where the firm was disclosed in ,ru1y 1,999

MR. JUSTfCE MORLAND: Yes, f am not suggesting

MR. MrLr,AR: -- and in the past, since we intimated to theclaimants that we wanted t.o put it in and rely on it at
7 .1-5 on the- Friday night before the t.rial to raise the point
and then ask for time, I may

MR. JUSrrcE MoRLAND: r am not being unsympathetic to you butr would have- thought it should.be possible for you to pinpointin writing what are the .specific inferences you are driwii:gfrom the Serbian footagd and the transcript ---
MR. MIIJLAR: Yes, 0y Lord. The point I was makingr was

MR. JUSTTCE MORLAND: -- and the transcript which you are puttingas partj-culars of justification againit ran wiiliams 
"-na 

e"..iy
Marshal1.

MR. MTLLAR: rt is. The point r was making is that they have leftit very late to ask.
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MR. JUSTTCE MORLAND: That may be, and it is also getti_ng verylate this afternoon. Is there anything else that we-shouid
deal with?

MR. MfLLAR: No, my Lord

MR. 'JUSTTCE MORLAND: The chronologry, the organisation chart andthat document you chose to call "Key Protagonists", will thatal-I go before the jury before the evidence begins?

MR. sHrELDs: rf you want it to, my Lord, of course. would your
Lordship think it helpful?

MR. ,JUSTTCE MORLAND: r would have thought it would be verydifficult for the jury to fol1ow through all these

MR. SHTELDS: r agree that names are impossible, so r am happywith that.
MR. irUSTICE MORLAND: Are you happy with that, Mr. Mi11ar?

MR. MILLAR: I have no qljection, my Lord.

MR. irusrrcE MORLAND: what about transcripts of the news, and. soforth, that we have been ristening to and watching today?

MR. SHTELDS: My Lord, we have got transcripts of all the newsbulletins, not of the rushes. r think Lhere may be somediscord as to whether they are entirely accurate but.

MR. ,JUsrrcE MoRLAND: r think at some stage an effort should be
made t.o agree the transcripts because I would have thought thequestion of balance may well be something t.hat. might bematerial.

MR. SHIELDS: We intend to put the transcripts because obviouslyI have got. to call your Lordship will of course reca11 whatthe case is. There is no plea of justification aqainst rrN
and I am going to tel1 the jury that tomorrow

MR. ifUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. sHrELDs: so r am showing the whore broadcaSt because r am
actj-ng out of fairness to both sid.es, because there is a 1otof reference to the publicity which followed the broadcasts onthe 5th and r did not want to be accused. of editing it soI have shown them in their entirety and tomorrow Mi. Williamsin chief wilr dear with how he wrole his particular scripE.

MR. 'JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes.

MR. SHfELDS: Because in fact what is crucial to the d.efendants,
case is to show, we would submit, that separatery or acting
toget,her they set out to 'distort the trutir and pioduce a tilse
image of something together.
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MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Yes. So
I hope the transcript. will

MR. SHIELDS: My Lord, yes. We
do t.hat and getting a full
the programmes that we have

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Good.

at some stage fairly early on
be agreed. fs there anything else?

had been moving towards trying to
bundle of the transcripts oi aft

shown.

MR. SHTELDS: r understand that is what we are now going to do.

MR. JUSTICE MORLAND: Thank you very much.

MR. SHIELDS: There was some resistance to doing that.
(aa
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